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February 8, 2019 
 
Mr. Mark Olinger, Director 
Department of Planning & Development Review 
900 East Broad Street, Suite 511 
Richmond, VA 23219 
Mark.Olinger@richmondgov.com  
 
RE:  Applicant’s Report for a Special Use Permit Amendment for 703 N Harrison Street and 410 N 

Hancock Street 
 
Dear Mr. Olinger, 
 

Please accept this letter as the Applicant’s Report for the Special Use Permit Amendment 
application for 703 N Harrison Street and 410 N Hancock Street. With this application, the owners of the 
subject properties are petitioning the City Council to remove the off-street parking requirement for the 
properties. The remaining conditions in the SUPs would stay in place as they currently exist. 
 

The proposed special use permit amendments would apply to two ordinances governing two 
properties across the alley from each other in the Carver neighborhood. Both ordinances were originally 
authorized in 2009 to allow for this adaptive redevelopment of two historic buildings into small mixed-
use multi-family buildings. 703 N Harrison Street is 0.148 acres and is improved with an historic building 
taking up nearly the entire lot. The building is approximately 12,900 square feet and contains 11 
dwelling units and one commercial space. 410 N Hancock is Street is 0.103 acres and is also improved 
with an historic building occupying nearly the entire lot. This building is approximately 8,410 square feet 
and contains ten dwelling units.  

 
The properties are currently located in the M-1 Light Industrial District which permits a wide 

variety of commercial and industrial land uses but prohibits any residential uses. This zoning has been in 
place for many decades and is no long compatible with the development pattern in the area. This zoning 
is what necessitated the two SUPs in 2009. Adjacent zoning along Broad Street is B-4 and does not have 
parking requirements for multi-family uses with less than 16 units.  

 
The special use permits authorizing the use of the existing buildings required one off-street 

parking space to be provide for each unit and allowed them to be provided off-site within 1,000 feet of 
the subject properties. At the time the ordinance was approved there were several surface parking lots 
in the vicinity that provided the off-street parking for these properties. Since then, those parking lots 
have been developed with higher and better uses and these properties are longer able to comply with 
the off-street parking requirement in the special use permit.  
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The Pulse Bus Rapid Transit system has also been installed two blocks from the properties and 

Virginia Commonwealth University has started offering bike share programs since the original approval 
of the special use permits. These changes in the University and the public transit system reduce the 
need for residents in the area to have cars. In fact, in an effort to support the Pulse, the City has recently 
updated parking requirements and zoning along the corridor.  

 
The properties are recommended by the Master Plan for Neighborhood Mixed-Use. According 

to the Pulse Corridor Plan, this category is designed to provide for an urban, walkable environment with 
a smattering of neighborhood oriented commercial uses. The building size, density, and zoning districts 
for these areas will vary depending on historic densities and neighborhood characteristics. The Plan has 
corridor wide goals of removing parking requirements for smaller-scale projects as a way to reduce 
barriers to entry and diversity of housing choice.  

 
This request to remove the parking requirement for these two existing developments is 

consistent with surrounding parking requirements and the goals of the Pulse Corridor Plan to remove 
parking requirements for small-scale projects and encourage the use of the public transit system. It is 
also consistent with the historic character of the area and will allow for the continued use of the historic 
buildings to offer high quality housing options in the area.  

  
We trust that you will agree with us that this proposed amendment to the SUPs meet the City 

Charter criteria for the granting of SUPs as the project will not (i) be detrimental to the safety, health, 
morals and general welfare of the community involved; (ii) tend to create congestion in streets, roads, 
alleys and other public ways and places in the area involved; (iii) create hazards from fire, panic or other 
dangers; (iv) tend to overcrowding of land and cause an undue concentration of population; (v) 
adversely affect or interfere with public or private schools, parks, playgrounds, water supplies, sewage 
disposal, transportation or other public requirements, conveniences and improvements; or (vi) interfere 
with adequate light and air. 

 
Thank you for your consideration of this application. Please feel free to contact me at 

lory@markhamplanning.com or (804) 248-2561 if you have any questions or require additional materials 
to process the application. 
 
Very Truly Yours, 

 
 
 
 

Lory Markham 
 
Enclosures 
 
cc: The Honorable Kimberly Gray 

Matthew Ebinger, Secretary to the City Planning Commission 
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